
 1923 E. AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761  -  www.flyontario.com  

 

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
COMMISSION AGENDA – REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

DECEMBER 23, 2021 AT 2:00 P.M. 
Ontario International Airport Authority Administration Offices  

1923 East Avion Street, Room 100, Ontario, CA  91761 
 

ALAN D. WAPNER 
President 

RONALD O. LOVERIDGE 
Vice President 

JIM W. BOWMAN 
Secretary 

CURT HAGMAN 
Commissioner 

JULIA GOUW 
Commissioner 

 
MARK A. THORPE 
Chief Executive Officer 

LORI D. BALLANCE 
General Counsel 

JOHN M. SCHUBERT 
Treasurer 

WELCOME TO THE MEETING OF 
THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 

•  All documents for public review are on file at the Ontario International Airport Administration Offices located at 
1923 E. Avion Street, Ontario, CA 91761. 

• Anyone wishing to speak during public comment or on an item will be required to fill out a blue slip.  Blue slips must 
be turned in prior to public comment, beginning or before an agenda item is taken up.  The Secretary/Assistant 
Secretary will not accept blue slips after that time.  

• You may submit public comments by e-mail to publiccomment@flyontario.com no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of 
the meeting. Please identify the Agenda item you wish to address in your comments. All e-mail comments will be 
included in the meeting record. 

• Comments will be limited to 3 minutes.  Speakers will be alerted when they have 1-minute remaining and when 
their time is up.  Speakers are then to return to their seats and no further comments will be permitted. 

• In accordance with State Law, remarks during public comment are to be limited to subjects within the Authority’s 
jurisdiction.  Remarks on other agenda items will be limited to those items. 

Remarks from those seated or standing in the back of the board room will not be permitted.  All those wishing to 
speak, including Commissioners and Staff, need to be recognized by the Authority President before speaking. 



December 23, 2021 
 

 1923 E. AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761 - www.flyontario.com 2 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER (OPEN SESSION) - 2:00 P.M. 
ROLL CALL  

Loveridge, Bowman, Hagman, Gouw, President Wapner 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Closed Session Public Comment portion of the Commission meeting is limited to a maximum of 3 
minutes for each speaker and comments will be limited to matters appearing on the Closed Session.  

 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

 
CLOSED SESSION  

 
GC section 54956.8:  REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS (portions of Airport);  
OIAA General Counsel’s office as negotiator. 
 

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
General Legal Counsel  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
The regular Commission meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. with Closed Session Public Comment and Closed 
Session, followed by Public Comment and the Regular Meeting. 
 
(Sign language interpreters, communication access real-time transcription, assistive listening devices, or other 
auxiliary aids and/or services may be provided upon request. To ensure availability, you are advised to make your 
request at least 72 hours prior to the meeting you wish to attend. Due to difficulties in securing Sign Language 
Interpreters, five or more business days’ notice is strongly recommended.) 
 



December 23, 2021 
 

 1923 E. AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761 - www.flyontario.com 3 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The Public Comment portion of the Commission meeting is limited to a maximum of 3 minutes for each 
Public Comment. Under provisions of the Brown Act, the Commission is prohibited from taking action 
on oral requests.  

 

AGENDA REVIEW/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
The Chief Executive Officer will go over all updated materials and correspondence received after the 
Agenda was distributed to ensure Commissioners have received them.   

1. INFORMATION RELATIVE TO POSSIBLE CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Agenda item contractors, subcontractors and agents may require member abstentions due to 
conflict of interests and financial interests. Commission Member abstentions shall be stated under 
this item for recordation on the appropriate item. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

All matters listed under CONSENT CALENDAR will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. 
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time Commission votes on them, unless 
a member of the Commission requests a specific item be removed from the Consent Calendar for a 
separate vote. 
 
Each member of the public wishing to address the Commission on items listed on the Consent Calendar 
will be given a total of 3 minutes. 
 

 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Minutes for the Ontario International Airport Authority special meeting on November 23, 2021 and 
cancelled meeting on November 25, 2021 and approving the same as on file with the 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary. 

 
3. BILLS/PAYROLL 

 
Bills November 1 through November 30, 2021 and Payroll November 1 through November 
30, 2021. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MEETING STIPENDS 
 

That the Ontario International Airport Authority Commission approve meeting stipends for 
President Wapner for the month of November, 2021. 



December 23, 2021 
 

 1923 E. AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761 - www.flyontario.com 4 

 

5. APPROVAL OF AN AUTHORITY INCREASE TO OIAA CONTRACT NO. SCONT-000291 WITH WALSH 
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY II, LLC, FOR THE TAXIWAY C IMPROVEMENT PROJECT AT ONTARIO 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
 
That the Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) Commission authorize the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO), or his designee, to increase the existing OIAA Contract No. SCONT-000291 with 
Walsh Construction Company II, LLC, for the Taxiway C Improvement Project to include the 
rehabilitation of an unpaved lot used for temporary employee parking in an amount not to exceed 
$85,000. 

 
6. APPROVAL OF PURCHASE ORDERS WITH JOAQUIN MANUFACTURING AND THALES AIR TRAFFIC 

MANAGEMENT U.S. AND AN AMENDMENT TO THE REIMBURSABLE AGREEMENT WITH THE 
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION FOR RUNWAY 26R INSTRUMENT LANDING SYSTEM 
UPGRADE PROJECT AT THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
 
That the Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) Commission authorize the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO), or his designee, to (1) execute a Purchase Order with JoaQuin Manufacturing in the 
amount of $638,939 for manufacture of 3 Navigational Aids (NAVAIDS) equipment shelters; (2) 
execute a Purchase Order with Thales Air Traffic Management U.S. in the amount of $68,475 for 
manufacture of the Far Field Monitor system; (3) execute an Amendment to the Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) Reimbursable Agreement in the amount of $125,673.12 for procurement of 
40 - 1500W transformers; and approve a contingency in the amount of 15% for taxes, shipping and 
other required equipment. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS/DISCUSSION/ACTION 
 
7. A RESOLUTION OF THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY TO APPROVE AND ADOPT 

FINDINGS, INCLUDING AS TO “EXEMPT SURPLUS PROPERTY”, REGARDING THE DISPOSITION OF 
CERTAIN AIRPORT REAL PROPERTY, AND TO APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER (CEO), OR THE CEO’S DESIGNEE, TO EXECUTE NECESSARY DOCUMENTATION FOR A 
DEVELOPMENT AND ENTITLEMENT AGREEMENT AND A LONG-TERM GROUND LEASE FOR SUCH 
AIRPORT REAL PROPERTY WITH CANAM ONTARIO, LLC 
 
That the Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) Commission approve a Resolution making 
Findings about certain Airport real property, and approving and authorizing the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO), or the CEO’s designee, to execute a Ground Lease Agreement and Development and 
Entitlement Agreement between the OIAA and CanAm Ontario, LLC (CAO). Upon completion of 
their due diligence the developer will provide a $10,000,000 non-refundable deposit to OIAA. The 
rental revenue from CAO to OIAA will be set at the schedule contained in the Ground Lease on the 
“Commencement Date” of the Lease (which is 18-months after the delivery date or the signing of 
the Ground Lease).  Thereafter, rent will be adjusted annually to the Consumer Price Index, and 
market adjustment every fifth Lease year.  At the end of the lease term, title to CAO’s 
improvements will become the OIAA’s. 



December 23, 2021 
 

 1923 E. AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761 - www.flyontario.com 5 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY TO APPROVE AND ADOPT FINDINGS, INCLUDING AS TO 
“EXEMPT SURPLUS PROPERTY”, REGARDING THE DISPOSITION OF 
CERTAIN AIRPORT REAL PROPERTY, AND TO APPROVE AND 
AUTHORIZE THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO), OR THE CEO’S 
DESIGNEE, TO EXECUTE NECESSARY DOCUMENTATION FOR A 
DEVELOPMENT AND ENTITLEMENT AGREEMENT AND A LONG-TERM 
GROUND LEASE FOR SUCH AIRPORT REAL PROPERTY WITH 
CANAM ONTARIO, LLC 

 

MANAGEMENT REPORT 
Executive Office 

 

COMMISSION MATTERS 
President Wapner  
Vice President Loveridge 
Secretary Bowman 
Commissioner Hagman 
Commissioner Gouw 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 



 

 

 
 
 

 
Page 1 of 1 

  

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 

 

  
 
 

DATE:  DECEMBER 23, 2021 
 

CLOSED SESSION REPORT 
OIAA// (GC 54956.8) 

Page 1 of 1 
 

ROLL CALL: Gouw ___, Bowman __, Hagman __, Loveridge __, President Wapner __. 
 

STAFF: CEO __, General Counsel __ 
 

• GC section 54956.8:  REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS (portions of Airport); OIAA General 
Counsel’s office as negotiator. 

 
 

 
                                  No Reportable Action  Continue Approved 

 
 /  / /  / /  / 
 
 
 
 
Disposition: _______________________________________________________________ 
 

Reported by:  
 
 
_______________________________________ 
General Legal Counsel / Chief Executive Officer 



 

 

STAFF MEMBER PRESENTING: Natalie Gonzaga, Board Clerk  
 
Department: Clerk’s Office    Submitted to OIAA:                   December 23, 2021 
      
       
        
 

 
Page 1 of 1  

  

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 

 

  
 
DATE:  DECEMBER 23, 2021 
 
SECTION: MINUTE ACTION 
 
SUBJECT: RELATIVE TO POSSIBLE CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): Agenda items and contractors/subcontractors may require member 
abstentions due to possible conflicts of interest.   
 
BACKGROUND:  In accordance with California Government Code 84308, members of the Ontario 
International Airport Authority may not participate in any action concerning a contract where they 
have received a campaign contribution of more than $250 in the prior twelve (12) months and from an 
entity or individual if the member knows or has reason to know that the participant has a financial 
interest, except for the initial award of a competitively bid public works contract. This agenda contains 
recommendations for action relative to the following contractors:  
 

Item No Principals & Agents Subcontractors 

5 Walsh Construction Company II • All American Asphalt 
• Aldridge Electric 
• Crown Fence 
• LA Steel Services 
• Penhall Company 
• Payco Specialties 

6 Joaquin Manufacturing  

6 Thales Air Traffic Management U.S.   

7 CanAm Ontario, LLC 
McDonald Property Group 
USAA Real Estate Company 

 

 



ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
SPECIAL COMMISSION MEETING 

MINUTES 
November 23, 2021 

(not official until approved) 

A special meeting of the Ontario International Airport Authority was held on Tuesday, 
November 23, 2021, at 1923 E. Avion Street, Room 100, Ontario, California.  

Notice of said meeting was duly given in the time and manner prescribed by law. 

CALL TO ORDER 

President Wapner called the Ontario International Airport Authority Commission meeting to order at 
9:00 a.m.  

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Commissioners: Julia Gouw, Curt Hagman, Ronald O. Loveridge 
and Alan D. Wapner 

ABSENT: Commissioners:  Jim W. Bowman (excused) 

Also present were: Deputy Chief Executive Officer Atif J. Elkadi, Assistant General Counsel Kevin 
Sullivan, and Board Clerk Natalie Gonzaga.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice President Loveridge. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Richard Sherman provided an email public comment regarding OIAA growth and development. 

AGENDA REVIEW/ANNOUNCEMENT  

No announcements were made.  

1. INFORMATION RELATIVE TO POSSIBLE CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No conflicts were announced. 

ITEM NO. 02



Ontario International Airport Authority Commission  
Special Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, November 23, 2021 
Page 2 of 5 

(not official until approved) 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
MOTION: Moved by Commissioner Hagman, seconded by Commissioner Gouw, and carried by a vote 
of 4-0-1, to approve consent calendar Items #2-8, with Secretary Bowman absent (excused).  
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Approved minutes for the Ontario International Airport Authority regular meeting on 
October 28, 2021 and special meeting on October 28, 2021, and approving the same as on file with 
the Secretary/Assistant Secretary. 

 
3. BILLS/PAYROLL 

 
Approved bills October 1 through October 31, 2021 and Payroll October 1 through 
October 31, 2021. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MEETING STIPENDS 
 

The Ontario International Airport Authority Commission approved meeting stipends for 
President Wapner for the month of October 2021. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF A NEW LEASE WITH U.S. GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION FOR LEASED SPACE 

IN TERMINALS 2 AND 4 AT ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
 

The Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) Commission authorized the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO), or his designee, to execute a new lease agreement with the U.S. General Services 
Administration (GSA) for leased breakroom and office space in Terminals 2 and 4 at Ontario 
International Airport (ONT).  GSA will be obligated to pay a total of $229.45 per square foot per 
year (psfpy) for 4,895 square feet for its leased spaces in Terminals 2 and 4. This will generate 
approximately $93,596.48 per month. The shell rental rate ($124.23 psfpy) will be adjusted with a 
step increase of 3.5% each year, and the operating costs ($105.22 psfpy) will be adjusted via CPI 
each year. 

 
6. APPROVE AN AUTHORITY INCREASE FOR ELEVATORS ETC., LP, FOR ELEVATOR AND ESCALATOR 

MAINTENANCE AT ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
 

The Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) Commission authorized the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO), or his designee, to increase the existing OIAA Contract No. SCONT-000195 with 
Elevators Etc., LP, for the maintenance of elevators and escalators for an amount of $50,000. Funds 
for this item are included in the current Fiscal Year 2021-22 Landside Operations Budget. 



Ontario International Airport Authority Commission  
Special Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, November 23, 2021 
Page 3 of 5 

(not official until approved) 
 

 
7. APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY 

DEPARTMENT FOR 800MHZ RADIO SERVICES AND MAINTENANCE 
 

The Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) Commission authorized the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO), or his designee, to enter into a five-year contract agreement with the San Bernardino 
County Innovation and Technology Department for 800MHz Radio Service and Maintenance for 
OIAA Departments, for an amount of $300,000, with a contingency in the amount of $100,000, for 
a total not to exceed amount of $400,000 over the five-year term of the contract. Funding for this 
contract is approved in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 operating budget. Funding for subsequent years 
will be requested through the annual budget process.  

 

8. INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
 

The Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) Commission received and filed the Investment 
Report for the quarter ended September 30, 2021. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS/DISCUSSION/ACTION  
 
9. APPROVAL OF STRATEGIC GOALS AND OBJECTIVES FOR THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

AUTHORITY 
 
The Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) Commission approved the updated strategic 
goals and objectives.  
 

Deputy CEO Elkadi provided a presentation on this item. Vice President Loveridge requested minor 
edits to the goals and objectives document. 

 
MOTION: Moved by Commissioner Gouw, seconded by Commissioner Hagman, and carried by a vote 
of 4-0-1, to approve the updated strategic goals and objectives with minor non-material edits, with 
Secretary Bowman absent (excused).  
 
10. APPROVAL OF A CONCESSION LEASE AGREEMENT WITH SWISSPORT USA, INC., TO OPERATE AND 

MANAGE THE TWO COMMON-USE AIRPORT CUSTOMER LOUNGES, BRANDED “ASPIRE”, IN 
TERMINAL 2 AND TERMINAL 4 AT ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

 
The Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) authorized the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), or his 
designee, to execute a five-year (5), concession lease agreement with Swissport USA, Inc., with one (1) 
five-year option to extend, to operate and manage two common-use airport customer lounges 
branded “Aspire” in Terminal 2 and Terminal 4 at Ontario International Airport (ONT). 
 



Ontario International Airport Authority Commission  
Special Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, November 23, 2021 
Page 4 of 5 

(not official until approved) 
 
Deputy CEO Elkadi provided a presentation on this item. Commissioners expressed appreciation for 
the new lounge and asked clarifying questions.   

 
MOTION: Moved by Commissioner Hagman, seconded by Commissioner Gouw, and carried by a vote 
of 4-0-1, to approve the Swissport USA, Inc. concession lease agreement, with Secretary Bowman 
absent (excused).  

 
11. FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 BUDGET UPDATE AND QUARTERLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THREE 

MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
 
The Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) Commission (1) received and filed Financial 
Statements for the three months ending September 30, 2021; and (2) approved budget 
adjustments for FY 2021-22. 
 

Deputy CEO Elkadi provided a presentation on this item. President Wapner mentioned the agenda item 
was reviewed by the Finance & Audit Committee and recommended for approval to the Commission.  
 
MOTION: Moved by Commissioner Hagman, seconded by Commissioner Gouw, and carried by a vote 
of 4-0-1, to approve the budget adjustments for FY 2021-22, with Secretary Bowman absent (excused).  
 
12. APPROVAL OF THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY’S AUDITED FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 

The Ontario International Airport Authority approved the Audited Financial Statements for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 

 
Bryan Gruber of LSL, CPAs, provided a presentation on the audited financial statements for FY 2020- 21. 
President Wapner mentioned the agenda item was reviewed by the Finance & Audit Committee and 
recommended for approval to the Commission. Commissioners asked questions related to the audit, 
including internal control measures, and the previous year findings compared to this year. 
 
MOTION: Moved by Commissioner Hagman, seconded by Commissioner Gouw, and carried by a vote 
of 4-0-1, to approve Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, with 
Secretary Bowman absent (excused).  
 
MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
Deputy Chief Executive Officer Elkadi provided updates on passenger and cargo traffic statistics for 
October 2021, the holiday travel outlook, and the S&P Global rating update for OIAA to an A- minus. 
 
 
 
 



Ontario International Airport Authority Commission  
Special Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, November 23, 2021 
Page 5 of 5 

(not official until approved) 
 
COMMISSIONER MATTERS 
 
Commissioner Gouw thanked staff for their work and asked to make sure to prepare ahead of time for 
surges in passenger traffic.  
 
Commissioner Hagman asked staff to be prepared with CIP project plans to apply for funding from the 
infrastructure bill, and to use the Commissioners support, as well as State and Federal resources. He asked 
staff to continue to re-engage with our airline partners for new routes, new airlines, and work towards 
gaining additional international flights through future logistic plans for international flight arrivals.  
 
Vice President Loveridge wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.  
 
President Wapner mentioned his participation in a beneficial tour of ONT Terminal 2 and encouraged 
other Commissioners to also take a tour. He wished everyone a good holiday season.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
President Wapner adjourned the Ontario International Airport Authority Commission meeting at 
9:21 a.m.  
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
NATALIE GONZAGA, BOARD CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
ALAN D. WAPNER, PRESIDENT 
ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 



ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
MINUTES 

Thursday, November 25, 2021 
(not official until approved) 

 

The Regular Meeting scheduled for Thursday, November 25, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. was cancelled due 
to the Thanksgiving holiday.  

 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
NATALIE GONZAGA, BOARD CLERK 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
ALAN D. WAPNER, PRESIDENT 
ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 





 

Page 2 of 2 
 

CEQA COMPLIANCE: Exclusion from the definition of “project”:  The creation of government funding 
mechanisms or other government fiscal activities which do not involve any commitment to any specific 
project which may result in a potentially significant physical impact on the environment.  (CEQA 
Guidelines §15378(b)(4).) 

PRIOR COMMISSION ACTION: On December 8, 2016, the OIAA Commission adopted 
Resolution No. 2016-14 approving and adopting the OIAA Bylaws.  

STAFFING IMPACT (# OF POSITIONS): N/A 

IMPACT ON OPERATIONS: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A 

The Agenda Report references the terms and conditions of the recommended actions and request for 
approval.  Any document(s) referred to herein and that are not attached or posted online may be 
reviewed prior to or following scheduled Commission meetings in the Office of the Clerk of the 
Commission.  Office hours are 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, although these hours and 
review procedures may be modified due to COVID-19 precautions. In that case, the documents may be 
requested by email at clerk@flyontario.com.   
 
This Agenda Report has been reviewed by OIAA General Counsel.  

mailto:clerk@flyontario.com




 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

cleared and graded, an estimated 750 spaces were striped, and k-rails now align the east and west sides 
as a safety measure. Staff, therefore, requests an authority increase in an amount not to exceed $85,000 
to cover the remaining construction cost associated with the temporary employee lot, which allows for 
increased parking availability near the terminals for the traveling public. 
 
PROCUREMENT:  Not Applicable 
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE AND LAND USE APPROVALS:  CATEX has been approved by the FAA. This project 
is Categorically Exempt (Class 1 and Class 2) from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 provides an exemption for relating to 
minor alterations to existing structures or facilities involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond 
that existing at the time of the lead agency's determination, as well as under CEQA Guidelines Section 
15302 relating to the reconstruction of existing structures or facilities involving substantially the same 
purpose and capacity as the structure replaced. 
 
STAFFING IMPACT (# OF POSITIONS):  N/A 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATIONS:  Increases parking availability near Terminal 2 and Terminal 4. 
 
SCHEDULE: The temporary employee parking lot activities started on November 10, 2021, and was 
completed in 11 days. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: N/A 
 
The Agenda Report references the terms and conditions of the recommended actions and request for 
approval.  Any document(s) referred to herein and that are not attached or posted online may be 
reviewed prior to or following scheduled Commission meetings in the Office of the Clerk of the 
Commission.  Office hours are 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, although these hours and 
review procedures may be modified due to COVID-19 precautions. In that case, the documents may be 
requested by email at clerk@flyontario.com.   
 
This Agenda Report has been reviewed by OIAA General Counsel. 

 

mailto:clerk@flyontario.com




 
 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

subsequent FAA Reimbursable Agreement Amendment will be brought to the Commission for approval 
at a future date. 
 
BACKGROUND: The Runway 26R ILS Upgrade project is the “second stage”, with the Runway 26R TDZ 
Lights being the first stage, of upgrading Runway 26R to ILS CAT IIIB and directly benefits all airfield users. 
At the June 24, 2021, Commission Meeting, the Commission approved approve the Runway 26R 
Instrument Landing System (ILS) Upgrade Project to upgrade the runway to Category (CAT) IIIB, the 
highest safety approach level; (2) authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute a Task Order 
with Mead & Hunt in the amount of $241,000 to accomplish the design services; (3) authorize the CEO 
to execute a contract with New Bedford Panoramex (NBP) in the not-to-exceed amount of $2,700,000 
for manufacture of the Approach Lighting System with Sequence Flashing Lights (ALSF-2); and 
(4) authorize the CEO to execute the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Reimbursable Agreement in 
the amount of $164,310.38. 
 
The ILS is a precision instrument approach that can accommodate industry-standard low visibility 
approaches, ILS CAT IIIB with Runway Visual Range (RVR) as low as 150 feet and Height Above 
Touchdown (HAT) as low as zero feet. Without them, runways are not able to accommodate the lowest 
visibility approaches and to safely guide pilots to the runway during times of inclement weather. 
Currently, at ONT, Runway 26L is the only runway with an ILS CAT IIIB approach. The existing Runway 
26R supports an ILS CAT I approach with RVR down to one-half of a mile and HAT down to 200 feet.  
 
The Runway 26R ILS Upgrade project will involve the manufacture and installation of 3 NAVAIDS 
equipment shelters to house the Approach Lighting System with Sequence Flashing Lights (ALSF-2 
system). The 3 NAVAIDS equipment shelters will be manufactured by JoaQuin Manufacturing located in 
Commerce City, Colorado, which is the only FAA approved manufacturer of these airfield shelters. The 3 
NAVAIDS shelters will take 4.5 - 6 months to manufacture. The Far Field Monitor will be manufactured 
by Thales Air Traffic Management U.S. located in Overland Park, Kansas, which is the only FAA approved 
manufacturer. Due to the Runway 26R ILS Upgrade project being a NAVAID, the FAA via the 
Reimbursable Agreement, will provide the 40 – 1500W transformers from their depot in Oklahoma. 
 
The Project’s scope of work will involve engineering design, manufacture of the ALSF-2 System, 
construction, construction administration and construction management services for the Runway 26R 
ILS Upgrade. The Project will also involve the phased demolition and removal of the existing Runway 26R 
medium Intensity approach lighting system (MALSR) to allow construction and installation of the ALSF-2 
system. The scope for this Project also includes control and topographic survey, geotechnical analysis 
and a construction safety and phasing plan for preparation of the contract documents. 
 
Project costs for the manufacture of the NAVAIDS shelters, Far Field Monitor and the procurement of 
FAA transformers are not eligible for FAA Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Grant funding. However, 
the Runway 26R ILS Upgrade project’s total estimated cost of $6,100,000 was included in the recent 
secured Series 2021 Bond Issuance.  
 



 
 

 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 

PROCUREMENT: JoaQuin is the only FAA-certified manufacturer of 3 airfield NAVAIDS equipment 
shelters. Thales Air Traffic Management U.S. is the only FAA-certified manufacture for the Far Field 
Monitor. The FAA Depot is the only location where the required 1500W transformers exist 
 
A future procurement will identify a construction contractor to perform the installation of the shelters 
and equipment and that contract will be brought to the Board at that time.  
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE AND LAND USE APPROVALS: A CATEX has been approved by the FAA on this item. 
This project is also exempt from CEQA review under CEQA Guidelines sections 15301(f) regarding the 
repair and maintenance of existing facilities for safety purposes, and 15302 regarding the replacement 
of existing facilities having the same purpose and capacity as the replaced facilities. 
 
STAFFING IMPACT (# OF POSITIONS): N/A 

IMPACT ON OPERATIONS: During construction, the Runway 26R-8L will be closed during the daytime for 
3-6 months commencing approximately June 2022. Strategic phasing will be employed to accommodate 
aircraft ingress/egress to the north side of the ONT airfield. For the ONT cargo peak seasons, the runways 
will be open for service. 

SCHEDULE: JoaQuin Manufacturing will take 4.5 - 6 months to manufacture the 3 NAVAIDS shelters. The 
construction of the Runway 26R ILS Upgrade will be accomplished via a coordinated and strategic 
program phasing plan and is scheduled to commence in June of 2022 and complete in Q1-2023.  

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

The Agenda Report references the terms and conditions of the recommended actions and request for 
approval.  Any document(s) referred to herein and that are not attached or posted online may be 
reviewed prior to or following scheduled Commission meetings in the Office of the Clerk of the 
Commission.  Office hours are 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, although these hours and 
review procedures may be modified due to COVID-19 precautions. In that case, the documents may be 
requested by email at clerk@flyontario.com.   
 
This Agenda Report has been reviewed by OIAA General Counsel. 

 

mailto:clerk@flyontario.com


ITEM NO. 07



 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 

 
The first round offers received on April 9th, 2021, included seventeen (17) responsive bidders.  The 
second round of offers received on April 26th, 2021, included twelve (12) responsive bidders. The final 
round of offers received on May 12, 2021, included five (5) responsive bidders.  
 
After interviews and following an update report provided in July 2021 to the OIAA Commission in closed 
session, lease and development terms were negotiated with USAA Real Estate Company/McDonald 
Property Group.  The estimated ground lease annual cash flows are as follows:    
 

 
 
Summary of Lease Terms  
 

Leasehold Area(s). Following the possible execution of the Ground Lease, CAO will develop the 
Property, which totals approximately 197.848 net acres located east of Haven Avenue, north of Jurupa 
Avenue, south of Airport Drive, and west of Carnegie Avenue, for the Project. 
 

Term(s). The Lease will be a total of fifty-five (55) years after which all tenant improvements revert 
to the OIAA’s ownership.  
 



 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 

Rent. Refer to cash flows table in background section.  
 
FAA Requirement(s). Special consideration was given to ensure compliance with federal statue, airport 
sponsor obligations, and FAA policy.  While the FAA is not required to approve all leases, concurrence 
by the FAA is encouraged in this situation, especially given the fifty-five (55) year term.  
 
Summary of Development & Entitlement Agreement  
 
The Development and Entitlement Agreement (DEA) allows time for the developer (CAO) to obtain local 
jurisdictional entitlements and CEQA approvals for the development of the Project.  
 

Developer Obligations. Developer is obligated to use commercially reasonable efforts to process 
all documents necessary for full and final zoning and CEQA approvals from the City of Ontario and all 
other governmental agencies.   

 
Developer is obligated to spend significant sums to acquire permits from applicable resource 

agencies and additional sums on a pari passu basis if OIAA matches those funds. 
 
If these amounts have been expended and five (5) years have elapse, Developer has the option 

of not proceeding.  
 

OIAA Obligations. OIAA shall cooperate with Developer to process all zoning and CEQA approvals 
and obtain all governmental clearances (including California Department of Fish and Wildlife and USFW) 
for all habitat conditions to allow for the development of the contemplated Project.  
 

Lease. All the following shall be satisfied prior to execution of the Ground Lease: 
 

1) Receipt by Developer of full zoning, CEQA and Site Plan approval by the City of Ontario;  
2) Clearance of mitigation plans by required government agencies;  
3) Receipt by Developer of building permits for the initial buildings shall be approved and ready to 

be issued; and  
4) Receipt by Developer of all governmental approvals for development of the Project and 

resolution of any judicial challenges to such approvals.  
 

Thirty (30) days after the Conditions to Lease are satisfied, the OIAA and Developer shall proceed to 
closing and execute and deliver the Ground Lease and Memorandum of Ground Lease.  

 
The Property is not Required for Other Authority Purposes.  

 
The Property has been vacant and unused for decades.  OIAA has determined that the Property is not 
suited for use for typical Authority or Airport aeronautical purposes, such as runways, taxiways, 
terminals, hangars, and similar Airport facilities because the Property is physically separated and 
removed from the balance of the Airport by Haven Avenue, which runs along the entire western limits of 
the Property. Accordingly, the Property is not required for other Authority purposes. 
 



 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 

State and Federal Safety and Noise Laws and Regulations Prohibit the Property From Being Developed with 
Residential Housing. 

  
Certain State and federal-imposed laws and regulations restrict and prevent use of the Property for 
residential purposes due to safety concerns and high noise levels. The Property is at the eastern end of the 
runway and directly below the flight path for the Airport.  

The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code section 21670 et seq.) requires each airport to 
adopt an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the purpose to “discourage incompatible land uses near 
existing airports (Pub. Util. Code, §§ 21674, § 21674.7, 21675, 21676, 21676.5.) The Ontario International 
Airport Compatibility Plan, amended in July 2018 (linked at https://www.ontarioca.gov/planning/ont-iac at 
Compatibility Plan), limits certain land uses near the airport based on state and FAA requirements. 
(Compatibility Plan, pp. 1-1, 1-2; see also Compatibility Plan, Appendix A, State Laws and Appendix B, Federal 
Aviation Regulations.) The policies set forth in the Airport Compatibility Plan that limit land uses are 
requirements for surrounding jurisdictions, such as OIAA. (Id. at p. 2-4; see also Exhibit 2A: Affected 
Jurisdictions.)  

The Airport Compatibility Plan required under State law adopts safety compatibility policies to minimize risks 
associated with off-airport accidents or emergency landings. More safety restrictions are set on residential 
land uses because residential uses warrant a greater degree of protection. (Compatibility Plan, p. 2-14.) The 
Compatibility Plan creates five safety zones. (Compatibility Plan, p. 2-15.) “Residential development is 
incompatible within all Safety Zones (1 through 5).” (Id. at p. 2-15; see pp. 2-34 and 2-41.) “New mixed-use 
developments will locate the residential component outside of all safety zones.” (Id. at pp. 2-15; see p. 2-
41.) The Property is located within Safety Zones 1, 2, and 3 in the Compatibility Plan. (Id. At Safety Zone Map 
1-8; see Appendix I, at I-13.) Residential development is therefore prohibited under State law for the Property 
under the Compatibility Plan’s Safety Policies. 

The Airport Compatibility Plan also establishes noise polices based on state regulations. (Id. at p. 2-21.) The 
purpose of the noise policies is to “avoid the establishment of noise-sensitive land uses in the portions of the 
[Ontario Airport] that are exposed to significant levels of aircraft noise.” (Id. at p. 2-19.) Residential uses are 
incompatible with airport land areas with noise exposure CNEL 70 dB and above. (Id. at Table 2-3 at p. 2-47.) 
Noise Policy SP3 states: “Residential infill development should not be allowed in areas exposed to exterior 
noise levels equal to or greater than CNEL 70 dB.” (Id. at p. 2-34.) The Property is located directly below the 
flight path for the Airport. (Compatibility Plan, Modeled Flight Routes, Exhibit 1-13.) The Property is within 
the high noise impact zones of CNEL 70-75 dB and CNEL 75+ dB. (Id. at p. 1-10 and Noise Map Exhibit 1-
9; see Appendix I, at I-5.) Thus, residential development is not allowed on the Property under the 
Compatibility Plan’s noise policies. (Id. at Noise Map Exhibit 1-9; see Appendix I, at I-6 [map of areas with 
residential land use designation, do not include Property, or anywhere near the Property].) 

FAA regulations require OIAA to “take appropriate action . . . to restrict the use of land adjacent to or in the 
immediate vicinity of the airport to activities and purposes compatible with normal airport operations.” (49 
U.S.C. § 47107(a)(10); see also FAA Order 5190.6B, (linked at: FAA Order 5190.6B Change 1, Airport 
Compliance Manual, 22 November 2021.) This is considered a “federal obligation to ensure compatible land 
use.” (FAA Order 5190.6B, p. 20-2.)  “Incompatible land use at or near airports may result in the creation of 
hazards to air navigation and reductions in airport utility resulting from obstructions to flight paths or noise-
related incompatible land uses resulting from residential construction too close to the airport.” (Id. at p. 20-

https://www.ontarioca.gov/planning/ont-iac
https://www.faa.gov/documentLibrary/media/Order/Order-5190-6B-Change1.pdf
https://www.faa.gov/documentLibrary/media/Order/Order-5190-6B-Change1.pdf


 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

1.) “Residential housing and other land uses near airports must remain compatible with airports and the 
airport approach/departure corridors.” (Id. at p. 20-1.) “Restricting residential development near the 
airport is essential in order to avoid noise-related problems.” (Id. at p. 20-2.) FAA Order 5190.6B also states, 
“The general rule on residential use of land on or near airport property is that it is incompatible with airport 
operations because of the impact of aircraft noise and, in some cases, for reasons of safety, depending on 
the location of the property.” (Id. at p. 20-5.)  In sum, FAA Order 5190.6B mandates that OIAA ensures 
compatible land uses with land on or immediately surrounding the Airport, and that it therefore restrict 
residential housing on the Property, which is located directly below the flight path for the Airport and is 
within areas affected by high noise levels. 

Based on these State and federal laws and regulations, the Property is “exempt surplus property” under 
Government Code section 54221(f)(1)(G) where housing would be prohibited from being developed. 

The Property is suitable for use and development of industrial uses regarding the Project consistent with 
the Airport Compatibility Plan.   

PROCUREMENT: An Offering of Memorandum process was conducted by CBRE under the direction of 
the Greg Devereaux, Director of Development and Elisa Grey, Director of Commercial Real Estate with 
the OIAA, along with John Andrews, Economic Development with the City of Ontario and Terry 
Thompson, Real Estate Services Director with the County of San Bernardino. OIAA’s Offering 
Memorandum and the related request for proposals or bids process for the long-term ground lease and 
development of the Property summarized above confirmed that the proposed Ground Lease with CanAm 
Ontario, LLC, will provide OIAA with fair market value for lease of the Property. The proposed Ground Lease 
between OIAA and CanAm will provide lease rentals and revenues for the Property that exceed the 
determinations of fair market value for the Property contained in three (3) separate appraisals for the 
Property prepared in 2020. 

CEQA COMPLIANCE AND LAND USE APPROVALS: No development activity or ground disturbance 
relating to the proposed Project will occur on the Property, and no Ground Lease will be executed, until 
all applicable environmental reviews and approvals have been obtained and issued. Given the unique 
circumstances that the Property is non-aeronautical lands of the Airport, the City of Ontario will be (i) the 
lead agency for purposes of compliance by the Project with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), 
Public Resources Code § 21000 et seq., and (ii) the zoning approval authority relating to the Premises and the 
Project.  Before approval by OIAA of any Ground Lease for the Premises, or the allowance of any development 
activity on the Premises related to the Project, CAO shall be required to obtain all applicable land use, zoning, 
and CEQA reviews, approvals, and certifications for the Project (collectively “Government Approvals”), and 
shall implement any requirements under such Governmental Approvals, including, without limitation, any 
mitigation measures required as a result of compliance with CEQA.   
 
STAFFING IMPACT (# OF POSITIONS): N/A 

IMPACT ON OPERATIONS: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment A – Development and Entitlement Agreement by and between the OIAA and 
CanAm Ontario, LLC. 



 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

Attachment B – Resolution making certain Findings about the Property, and approving the Development and 
Entitlement Agreement and Ground Lease Agreement for the Property with CanAm Ontario, LLC 

The Agenda Report references the terms and conditions of the recommended actions and request for 
approval.  Any document(s) referred to herein and that are not attached or posted online may be 
reviewed prior to or following scheduled Commission meetings in the Office of the Clerk of the 
Commission.  Office hours are 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, although these hours and 
review procedures may be modified due to COVID-19 precautions. In that case, the documents may be 
requested by email at clerk@flyontario.com.   
 
This Agenda Report has been reviewed by OIAA General Counsel. 

 

mailto:clerk@flyontario.com


ATTACHMENT A































































































































































































































Page 1 of 10 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY TO APPROVE AND ADOPT FINDINGS, INCLUDING AS TO 
“EXEMPT SURPLUS PROPERTY”, REGARDING THE DISPOSITION OF 
CERTAIN AIRPORT REAL PROPERTY, AND TO APPROVE AND 
AUTHORIZE THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO), OR THE CEO’S 
DESIGNEE, TO EXECUTE NECESSARY DOCUMENTATION FOR A 
DEVELOPMENT AND ENTITLEMENT AGREEMENT AND A LONG-TERM 
GROUND LEASE FOR SUCH AIRPORT REAL PROPERTY WITH 
CANAM ONTARIO, LLC.   

WHEREAS, the Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA or Authority) was established 
under a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of Ontario and the County of San 
Bernardino pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California, for the purpose 
of operating, maintaining, managing, developing, and marketing the Ontario International Airport 
(Airport) and related Airport facilities;  

WHEREAS, the Authority owns approximately 197 acres on the eastern end of the Airport, 
east of Haven Road, north of Jurupa Avenue, and south of Airport Drive, which include Assessor’s 
Parcel Numbers 0211-232-44-0-000, 0211-232-45-0-000, 0211-232-46-0-000, 0211-222-47-0-
000, 0211-222-48-0-000, 0211-222-52-0-000 AND 0211-222-53-0-000, 0211-222-54-0-000, 
0211-222-55-0-000, 0211-232-11-0-000, 0211-232-12-0-000, 0211-232-13-0-000, 0211-232-14, 
0211-232-15-0-000, 0211-232-16-0-000, 0211-232-17-0-000, 0211-232-18-0-000, 0211-232-19-
0-000, 0211-232-20-000, 0211-232-04-0-000, 0211-232-05-0-000, 0211-232-06-0-000, 0211-
232-07-0-000, and 0211-222-56-0-000 (collectively the Property). The Property is surrounded by
industrial buildings and land uses to the north, east, and south;

WHEREAS, in 2020, the Authority discussed with the Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA) whether the possible lease and use of the Property for industrial logistics development 
related to the warehousing and distribution of goods and products would be subject to federal 
jurisdiction and approval. On November 23, 2020, the FAA issued to OIAA a letter under Section 
163 of the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018 regarding a portion of the Property. On January 21, 
2021, the FAA issued to OIAA another letter under Section 163 of the Act regarding the remaining 
portions of the Property. Collectively, the two FAA letters stated that the proposed use of the 
Property for industrial logistics development related to the warehousing and distribution of goods 
and products would (1) create revenue to help fund Airport operating costs and (2) not adversely 
impact aircraft operations at the Airport.  The FAA therefore determined it lacked authority to 
approve or disapprove any potential lease and development of the Property; 

WHEREAS, the Property has been vacant and unused for decades.  OIAA has determined 
that the Property is not suited for land uses for typical Authority or Airport aeronautical purposes, 
such as for runways, taxiways, terminals, hangars, and similar Airport facilities because the 
Property is physically separated and removed from the balance of the Airport by Haven Avenue, 
which runs along or near the entire western limits of the Property. Accordingly, the Property is not 
required for other Authority purposes, and pursuant to Government Code section 37395, can be 
leased for up to 55 years; 

WHEREAS, between April and June 2020, OIAA commissioned three (3) separate and 
independent appraisals of the Property for the purpose of determining fair market value related to 
a sale or long-term lease of the Property;  

ATTACHMENT B



Page 2 of 10 
 

WHEREAS, in February 2021, CBRE, Inc. (CBRE), on behalf of the OIAA, initiated an 
Offering of Memorandum for the proposed leasing and development of the Property.  The 
Offering of Memorandum was distributed to CBRE’s bidder list, which included more than 
4,800 potential bidders nationwide. The first round offers received on April 9, 2021, included 
seventeen (17) responsive bidders.  The second round of offers received on April 26, 2021, 
included twelve (12) responsive bidders. The final round of offers received on May 12, 2021, 
included five (5) responsive bidders. After the final round of offers/bids on June 23, 2021, the 
OIAA selection committee held interviews to understand bidders’ proposals related to 
development process, timing, due diligence and environmental analysis, as well as a further 
analysis of their proposed ground lease offerings. After interviews, USAA Real Estate 
Company (later CanAm Ontario, LLC) was the final selected responsive bidder as the 
company was determined to have presented the best proposal for a long-term lease of the 
Property based on the bidding process, which proposal exceeded the determinations of fair 
market value in the appraisals for the Property discussed above. OIAA staff presented this 
determination and report on the bid process to the OIAA Commission in July 2021 and 
thereafter moved forward with negotiating lease and development terms relating to the 
Property;  

WHEREAS, CanAm Ontario, LLC (CanAm) proposes a long-term Ground Lease for the 
Property for industrial logistics development related to the warehousing and distribution of goods 
and products (the Project), which use is generally complimentary with Airport operations. As 
detailed in the Agenda Report on the proposed Development and Entitlement Agreement and 
Ground Lease between OIAA and CanAm to be considered at the OIAA Commission’s December 
23, 2021, Regular public meeting, operations and uses on the Property under the proposed 
Ground Lease would involve significant improvements to the Property (subject to all 
environmental reviews and approvals), and significant rental revenues paid to OIAA over the 55-
year term of the Ground Lease; 

WHEREAS, operations under the proposed Project and Ground Lease will be also 
consistent with supply chain improvements that are encouraged in Governor Newsom’s Executive 
Order N-19-21 regarding supply chain issues, which Order recognized that “the movement of 
goods and health of supply and distribution chains across California is a matter of vital statewide 
importance ….”  

WHEREAS, given the unique circumstances that the Property is non-aeronautical lands 
of the Airport, the City of Ontario will be (i) the lead agency for purposes of compliance by the 
Project with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Public Resources Code § 21000 et 
seq., and (ii) the zoning approval authority relating to the Property and the Project.  Before 
approval by OIAA of any Ground Lease for the Property, or the allowance of any development 
activity on the Property related to the Project, CanAm shall be required to obtain all applicable 
land use, zoning, and CEQA reviews, approvals, and certifications for the Project (collectively 
“Government Approvals”), and shall implement any requirements under such Governmental 
Approvals, including, without limitation, any mitigation measures required as a result of 
compliance with CEQA;   

WHEREAS, the Offering Memorandum and related request for proposals or bids process 
for the long-term Ground Lease and development of the Property summarized above confirmed 
that the proposed Ground Lease with CanAm will provide OIAA with fair market value for lease of 
the Property; 

WHEREAS, certain State-imposed laws and regulations restrict and prevent use of the 



Page 3 of 10 
 

Property for residential purposes and for some, but not all, non-residential uses, due to safety 
concerns and high noise levels;  

WHEREAS, certain FAA-imposed regulations restrict and prevent use of the Property for 
residential purposes and for some, but not all, non-residential uses, due to safety concerns and 
high noise levels; 

WHEREAS, such State and FAA laws and regulations justify a determination and finding 
by OIAA under Government Code section 54221(f)(1)(G) that the Property is “exempt surplus 
property” where housing would be prohibited;   

WHEREAS, the OIAA Commission has reviewed and considered all materials identified 
and referred to in this Resolution, as well as all materials and documents discussed in and 
attached to the Agenda Report for this matter; and 

WHEREAS, on December 20, 2021, the Authority provided notice of the Regular OIAA 
Commission meeting, which includes consideration of this matter, scheduled for December 23, 
2021, in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code § 54950, et seq., and 
provided notice to Douglas Carstens, Esq.: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the OIAA Commission as follows: 

SECTION 1.  FINDINGS. 

All Whereas clauses or Recitals in this Resolution above are incorporated by reference 
into these Findings. 

Further, the OIAA Commission, in light of the whole record before it including, but not 
limited to (1) the Agenda Report, including attachments to the Report, for this matter,  and (2) 
other substantial evidence within the record and/or provided at this December 23, 2021 Regular 
public meeting (all of which administrative record materials for this matter are incorporated by 
reference into this Resolution No. 2021-____), finds and determines as follows: 

1. The Property is not required for other Authority purposes, and pursuant to 
Government Code section 37395, can be leased for up to 55 years.  

The Property has been vacant and unused for decades.  OIAA has determined that 
the Property is not suited for land uses for typical Authority or Airport aeronautical 
purposes, such as for runways, taxiways, terminals, hangars, and similar Airport 
facilities because the Property is physically separated and removed from the balance 
of the Airport by Haven Avenue, which runs along or near the entire western limits of 
the Property. Accordingly, the Property is not required for other Authority purposes, 
and pursuant to Government Code section 37395, can be leased for up to 55 years. 

2. State Law and the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
Establish Legal Restrictions that Prohibit Residential Housing on the Property. 

A. State Law Requires an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Airport 

The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code section 21670 et seq.) 
requires each airport to adopt an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan and requires 



Page 4 of 10 
 

affected agencies to adopt land use designations consistent with the terms therein. 
(Pub. Util. Code, §§ 21674, 21675, 21676, 21676.5.) The intent of the Legislature 
under the Aeronautics Act is to “discourage incompatible land uses near existing 
airports.” (Id. at § 21674.7.)  

The Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan, amended July 2018 
(linked at https://www.ontarioca.gov/planning/ont-iac at Compatibility Plan, and 
incorporated in its entirety into this Resolution No. 2021-___), limits certain land uses 
near the airport based on state and FAA requirements. (Compatibility Plan, pp. 1-1, 1-
2; see also Compatibility Plan, Appendix A, State Laws and Appendix B, Federal 
Aviation Regulations.) The Airport Compatibility Plan was created by the City of 
Ontario in coordination with the County of San Bernardino and other affected agencies, 
such as Riverside County and Los Angeles County. (Id. at pp. 1-3 through 1-4.) The 
policies set forth in the Compatibility Plan that limit land uses are requirements for 
surrounding jurisdictions, such as OIAA. (Id. at p. 2-4; see also Exhibit 2A: Affected 
Jurisdictions.) Affected agencies must modify, if necessary, any zoning and land use 
regulations to ensure they are consistent with the land use policies set forth in the 
Compatibility Plan. (Id. at p. 2-6; Gov. Code, § 65302.3; Pub. Util. Code, § 21676 [local 
agencies must comply with land use compatibility plans].)  

B. State-Mandated Safety Policies in the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Prohibit 
Residential Housing and Uses on the Property. 

The Airport Compatibility Plan required under State law adopts safety compatibility 
policies to minimize risks associated with off-airport accidents or emergency landings. 
More safety restrictions are set on residential land uses because residential uses 
warrant a greater degree of protection. (Compatibility Plan, p. 2-14.)  

The Compatibility Plan creates five safety zones. (Compatibility Plan, p. 2-15.) 
“Residential development is incompatible within all Safety Zones (1 through 5).” (Id. 
at p. 2-15; see pp. 2-34 and 2-41.) “New mixed-use developments will locate the 
residential component outside of all safety zones.” (Id. at pp. 2-15; see p. 2-41.) 

The Property is located within Safety Zones 1, 2, and 3 in the Compatibility Plan. (See 
Safety Zone Map Exhibit 1-8, attached to this Resolution as Exhibit 1; see also 
Appendix I, at I-13.) Residential development is therefore prohibited under State law 
for the Property under the Compatibility Plan’s Safety Policies. 

C. State-Mandated Noise Policies in the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Prohibit 
Residential Housing and Uses on the Property 

The Airport Compatibility Plan also establishes noise polices based on state 
regulations, guidelines, and the California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook. (Id. 
at p. 2-21.) The purpose of the noise policies is to “avoid the establishment of noise-
sensitive land uses in the portions of the [Ontario International Airport] that are 
exposed to significant levels of aircraft noise.” (Id. at p. 2-19.) 

Residential uses are incompatible with airport land areas with noise exposure CNEL 
70 dB and above. (Id. at Tables 2-3 at p. 2-47.) Noise Policy SP3 states: “Residential 
infill development should not be allowed in areas exposed to exterior noise levels 
equal to or greater than CNEL 70 dB.” (Id. at p. 2-34.) 

https://www.ontarioca.gov/planning/ont-iac


Page 5 of 10 
 

The Property is located directly below the flight path for the Airport. (Compatibility Plan, 
Modeled Flight Routes, Exhibit 1-13.) The Property is within the high noise impact 
zones of CNEL 70-75 dB and CNEL 75+ dB. (See Compatibility Plan, p. 1-10; Noise 
Map Exhibit 1-9, which Map is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit 2; see also 
Appendix I, at I-5.) Thus, residential development is not allowed on the Property under 
the Compatibility Plan’s noise policies. (Noise Map Exhibit 1-9; see also Appendix I, at 
I-6 [map of areas with residential land use designation, do not include the Property, or 
anywhere near the Property]. 

3. Federal Regulations Prohibit Residential Uses and Housing on the Property. 

FAA regulations require OIAA to “take appropriate action . . . to restrict the use of land 
adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of the airport to activities and purposes 
compatible with normal airport operations.” (49 U.S.C. § 47107(a)(10); see also FAA 
Order 5190.6B, (linked at: FAA Order 5190.6B Change 1, Airport Compliance Manual, 
22 November 2021 and incorporated in its entirety into this Resolution No. 2021-___.) 
This is considered a “federal obligation to ensure compatible land use.” (FAA Order 
5190.6B, p. 20-2.)  

“Incompatible land use at or near airports may result in the creation of hazards to air 
navigation and reductions in airport utility resulting from obstructions to flight paths or 
noise-related incompatible land uses resulting from residential construction too close 
to the airport.” (Id. at p. 20-1.) “Residential housing and other land uses near airports 
must remain compatible with airports and the airport approach/departure corridors.” 
(Id. at p. 20-1.) “Restricting residential development near the airport is essential 
in order to avoid noise-related problems.” (Id. at p. 20-2.) 

FAA Order 5190.6B also states, “The general rule on residential use of land on or 
near airport property is that it is incompatible with airport operations because 
of the impact of aircraft noise and, in some cases, for reasons of safety, 
depending on the location of the property.” (Id. at p. 20-5.)   

In sum, FAA Order 5190.6B mandates that OIAA ensures compatible land uses with 
land on or immediately surrounding the Airport, and that it therefore restrict residential 
housing on the Property, which is located directly below the flight path for the Airport 
and is within areas affected by high noise levels. 

4. The Property is Exempt Surplus Property under Government Code Section 
54221(f)(1)(G).  

The State and federal laws and regulations discussed and referenced in Sections 2 
and 3 (Findings) of this Resolution above warrant, justify, and result in a determination 
and finding by OIAA under Government Code section 54221(f)(1)(G) that the Property 
is “exempt surplus property” where housing would be prohibited from being developed. 

The Property is suitable for use and development of industrial uses regarding the 
Project consistent with the Airport Compatibility Plan.   

 

https://www.faa.gov/documentLibrary/media/Order/Order-5190-6B-Change1.pdf
https://www.faa.gov/documentLibrary/media/Order/Order-5190-6B-Change1.pdf


Page 6 of 10 
 

5. The Long-Term Ground Lease of the Property will Produce and Provide Fair 
Market Value to the Authority.   

OIAA’s Offering Memorandum, through CBRE, and the related request for proposals 
or bids process for the long-term ground lease and development of the Property 
summarized above confirmed that the proposed Ground Lease with CanAm Ontario, 
LLC, will provide OIAA with fair market value for lease of the Property. The proposed 
Ground Lease between OIAA and CanAm will provide lease rentals and revenues for 
the Property that exceed the determinations of fair market value for the Property 
contained in the three (3) separate appraisals for the Property discussed above.   

6. The Proposed Development and Use of the Property Under the Ground Lease 
Will be Consistent with Vital State Objectives Regarding the Movement of Goods 
and Health of Supply and Distribution Chains Across California.   

The proposed Project would utilize the Property for industrial logistics development 
related to the warehousing and distribution of goods and products. Operations under 
the proposed Project and Ground Lease will therefore be consistent with supply chain 
improvements that are encouraged in Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-19-21 
regarding supply chain issues, which Order recognized that “the movement of goods 
and health of supply and distribution chains across California is a matter of vital 
statewide importance ….” 

SECTION 2.  OIAA COMMISSION ACTIONS: 

1. Approval of Findings:  The OIAA Commission approves and adopts the Findings 
set forth in Section 1 of this Resolution above.   

2. Approval of the Development and Entitlement Agreement with CanAm Ontario, 
LLC: The OIAA Commission approves the Development and Entitlement 
Agreement (DEA) between CanAm Ontario, LLC, and OIAA included as 
Attachment A to the Agenda Report for this matter, and authorizes the OIAA’s 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO), or the CEO’s designee, to execute all documents 
related to the DEA.  

3. Approval of the Ground Lease with CanAm Ontario, LLC: The OIAA Commission 
approves the Ground Lease between CanAm Ontario, LLC, and OIAA included as 
Attachment B to the Agenda Report for this matter, and, subject to satisfaction of 
each of the conditions stated and contained in Sections 2.2(a)(1), 2.3(d), 2.7, 
4.1(f), and 4.1(g) of the DEA, authorizes the OIAA’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO), 
or the CEO’s designee, to execute all documents related to the Ground Lease.  

 

 

 

 

 



Page 7 of 10 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of December 2021.   

 
 

________________________________ 
ALAN D. WAPNER, OIAA PRESIDENT  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
NATALIE GONZAGA, ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
LORI D. BALLANCE, GENERAL COUNSEL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 8 of 10 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO  ) 
CITY OF ONTARIO     ) 
 
 
I, Natalie Gonzaga, Commission Clerk of the Ontario International Airport Authority, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. 2021-__ was duly passed and adopted by the 
Commission of the Ontario International Airport Authority at their Regular meeting held December 
23, 2021 by the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:  COMMISSIONERS:  
 
NOES:  COMMISSIONERS:       
 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:        
 
 
 

         
_______________________________________ 

      NATALIE GONZAGA, ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The foregoing is the original of Resolution No. 2021-__ duly passed and adopted by the 
Commission of the Ontario International Airport Authority at their Regular meeting held December 
23, 2021. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      NATALIE GONZAGA, ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 9 of 10 
 

 

EXHIBIT 1 
OIAA RESOLUTION NO. 2021-__ 

(SAFETY ZONES MAP) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



E. Holt Blvd.

O n t a r i o

O n t a r i o

R
iv

er
si

de
 C

ou
nt

y

County

4
4

3

3

3

3
3

2
211

5

5

S
an

  B
er

na
rd

in
o

O n t a r i o

R a n c h o   C u c a mo n g a

E
uc

lid
 A

ve
.

G
ro

ve
 A

ve
.

A
rc

hi
ba

ld
 A

ve
.

H
av

en
 A

ve
.

M
ill

ik
en

 A
ve

.

Vi
ne

ya
rd

 A
ve

.

E
uc

lid
 A

ve
.

In
te

rs
ta

te
 1

5

A
rc

hi
ba

ld
 A

ve
.

G
ro

ve
 A

ve
.

Vi
ne

ya
rd

 A
ve

.

E. Mission Blvd.

Pomona Fwy.

Inland Empire Blvd.

Jurupa Ave.

Fourth St.

Sixth St.

E. Holt Blvd.
U.P.R.R.

Airport Dr.

Interstate 10

E. Mission Blvd.

In
te

rs
ta

te
 1

5

Interstate 10

C
:\

U
se

rs
\1

86
99

\A
p

p
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p
\A

cP
ub

lis
h

_9
28

8\
O

N
T-

co
m

p
at

ib
ili

ty
.d

w
g

   
   

 J
un

 1
3,

  2
01

8 
- 

12
:0

6p
m

1" = 3,000'

Exhibit 1-8

Compatibility Factors:
Safety

Legend

Airport Property Line
Boundary Lines

City Limits

Notes
1. Generic Large Air Carrier Safety Zones source: California

Airport Land Use Planning Handbook (January 2002).
The generic safety zones translate nationwide aircraft
accident distribution pattern data into a set of distinct
zones with regular geometric shapes and sizes. These
safety zones are shown for both the existing and ultimate
runway configurations.

2. The "No Project" forecast assumes that aircraft activity
would be constrained due to the current airfield
configuration.

3. Adjusted Zone 1 to match runway protection zones (RPZ)
as follows:

0 FEET 6,000'

3,000'

Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan 

· County of San Bernardino, County of Los Angeles, and
County of Riverside TLMA (2009).

Base  Map Sources:

Existing Runways
Street

County Line

Safety Zones

Existing
Runway 8L Approach: 1,000' x 2,500' x 1,750'

Runway 8L Departure: 500' x 1,700' x 1,010'

Runway 26R: 1,000' x 2,500' x 1,750'

Runway 8R: 1,000' x 2,500' x 1,750'

Runway 26L: 1,000' x 2,500' x 1,750'

No

1,
00

0'

4,000'6,000'

1,
00

0'

3

1
5

5
2

3

4

1,
00

0'

15 100 1,
50

0'

1
Generic Large Air Carrier

Safety Zones

Project

RPZ begins 200' from
runway ends

RPZ begins 200' from
displaced threshold

Prepared By:                                  www.meadhunt.com

U p l a n d
C

 h
 i 

n 
o

Runway 8L-26R

BACKGROUND AND METHODOLOGY CHAPTER 1

2

26 R
26 L8R

8L

July 2018 Amendment



Page 10 of 10 
 

 
EXHIBIT 2 

OIAA RESOLUTION NO. 2021-__ 
(NOISE IMPACT ZONES MAP) 

 



Cable Airport

Chino Airport

San Bernardino County
Riverside County

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y

S
an

 B
er

na
rd

in
o 

C
ou

nt
y

F o n t a n a

C h i n o   H i l l s

N o r c o

R i v e r s i d e

U n i n c o r p.

U
 n

 i 
n 

c 
o

 r
 p

.

C l a r e m o n t

M o n t c l a i rP o m o n a

U n i n c o r p.

C h i n o

F o n t a n a

U n i n c o r p o r a t e d

U n i n c o r p o r a t e d

R a n c h o   C u c a m o n g aU p l a n d

U
ni

nc
o

rp
.

O n t a r i o

Chino Ave. 

Schaefer Ave.

Edison Ave.

Eucalyptus Ave.

Merrill Ave.

Schleisman Rd.

C
yp

re
ss

 A
ve

.

In
te

rs
ta

te
 1

5

H
am

ne
r A

ve
.

Pomona Fwy.

G
ro

ve
 A

ve
.

A
rc

hi
ba

ld
 A

ve
.

E. Mission Blvd.

Interstate 10

Vi
ne

ya
rd

 A
ve

.

H
av

en
 A

ve
.

A
rc

hi
ba

ld
 A

ve
.

In
te

rs
ta

te
 1

5

M
ill

ik
en

 A
ve

.

Interstate 10

C
he

rr
y 

A
ve

.

E
tiw

an
da

 A
ve

.

M
ul

lb
er

ry
 A

ve
. A
lm

on
d 

A
ve

.

Arrow Blvd.

Fourth St.

Jurupa Ave.

Bellgrave Ave.

Hwy.  60

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
A

ve
.

E
uc

lid
 A

ve
.

Walnut Ave.

E. Holt Blvd.

C
en

tra
l A

ve
.

Foothill Blvd.

16th St.
Foothill Fwy.

Highway 210

A
rc

hi
ba

ld
 A

ve
.

Riverside Dr.

Mission Blvd.

State St.

C
:\

U
se

rs
\1

86
99

\A
p

p
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p
\A

cP
ub

lis
h

_9
28

8\
O

N
T-

co
m

p
at

ib
ili

ty
.d

w
g

   
   

 J
un

 1
3,

  2
01

8 
- 

3:
32

p
m

Exhibit 1-9

Compatibility Factors:
Noise

1" = 8,000'

Legend

Airport Property Line
Boundary Lines

City Limits

Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan 

· County of San Bernardino, County of Los Angeles, and
County of Riverside TLMA (2009).

Base  Map Sources:

Existing Runways

Notes
1. Source:  HNTB Technical Memorandum to LAWA, Noise

Contours for LA/ONT Environmental Impact Report (June
13, 2008).

2. The "No Project" forecast assumes that aircraft activity
would be constrained due to the current airfield
configuration. The "Proposed Project" forecast is based
on the ultimate reconfiguration of the airport - both
runways shifting south and east of their current
alignments. Annual operations rounded to nearest
thousand.

No Project Noise Contours

343,000 Annual Operations

1

Street

16,000'FEET

8,000'

0

County Line

65-70 dB CNEL
70-75 dB CNEL

60-65 dB CNEL

75-80 dB CNEL

2

Prepared By:                                  www.meadhunt.com

BACKGROUND AND METHODOLOGY CHAPTER 1

Runway 8L-26R
Runway 8R-26L

26 R
26 L

8R

8L

July 2018 Amendment

AutoCAD SHX Text
}


	ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY
	WELCOME TO THE MEETING OF
	THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY
	ORDER OF BUSINESS
	CALL TO ORDER (OPEN SESSION) - 2:00 P.M.
	CLOSED SESSION PUBLIC COMMENT
	CLOSED SESSION
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	AGENDA REVIEW/ANNOUNCEMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS/DISCUSSION/ACTION
	MANAGEMENT REPORT
	COMMISSION MATTERS
	ADJOURNMENT
	Closed Session Report.pdf
	DATE:  DECEMBER 23, 2021
	OIAA// (GC 54956.8)
	Page 1 of 1
	Disposition: _______________________________________________________________

	Closed Session Report.pdf
	DATE:  DECEMBER 23, 2021
	OIAA// (GC 54956.8)
	Page 1 of 1
	Disposition: _______________________________________________________________

	Closed Session Report.pdf
	DATE:  DECEMBER 23, 2021
	OIAA// (GC 54956.8)
	Page 1 of 1
	Disposition: _______________________________________________________________

	Item No. 01 - Conflict of Interest.pdf
	DATE:  DECEMBER 23, 2021
	SUBJECT: RELATIVE TO POSSIBLE CONFLICT OF INTEREST

	Item No. 03 - Bills-Payroll.pdf
	Nov 2021 Board Report Final

	20211223 Stipend Report^01.pdf
	DATE:  DECEMBER 23, 2021
	SUBJECT: ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY COMMISSION APPROVAL OF STIPENDS AS REQUIRED BY AUTHORITY BYLAWS
	RELEVANT STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: Invest in ONT; Plan for the Future; Master the Basics.

	Item No. 05 - Taxiway C Budget Increase Dec 2021.pdf
	DATE:  DECEMBER 23, 2021
	SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF AN AUTHORITY INCREASE TO OIAA CONTRACT NO. SCONT-000291 WITH WALSH CONSTRUCTION COMPANY II, LLC, FOR THE TAXIWAY C IMPROVEMENT PROJECT AT ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

	Item No. 06 - Runway 26R ILS Upgrade_PO Equipment_RA A4.pdf
	DATE:  DECEMBER 23, 2021
	SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF PURCHASE ORDERS WITH JOAQUIN MANUFACTURING AND THALES AIR TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT U.S. AND AN AMENDMENT TO THE REIMBURSABLE AGREEMENT WITH THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION FOR RUNWAY 26R INSTRUMENT LANDING SYSTEM UPGRADE PROJECT AT ...
	20211223 Runway 26R ILS Upgrade_PO Equipment_RA A4^01 AR.pdf
	DATE:  DECEMBER 23, 2021
	SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF PURCHASE ORDERS WITH JOAQUIN MANUFACTURING AND THALES AIR TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT U.S. AND AN AMENDMENT TO THE REIMBURSABLE AGREEMENT WITH THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION FOR RUNWAY 26R INSTRUMENT LANDING SYSTEM UPGRADE PROJECT AT ...


	20211223 Boot Property^01 AR.pdf
	DATE:  DECEMBER 23, 2021
	RELEVANT STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: Invest in ONT; Plan for the Future.
	Boot Property Agenda Report (Final Clean) (1).pdf
	DATE:  DECEMBER 23, 2021
	RELEVANT STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: Invest in ONT; Plan for the Future.





